



Shaping Education to nurture the \$80 Billion Creative Economy



Foreword

Empowering the Next Generation for a Dynamic Creative Economy

Charu Malhotra

Co-Founder & MD, 3E Practice Lead - Education, Employability & Entrepreneurship, Primus Partners



The Education ecosystem needs to transition from rote learning to a competencybased curriculum to prepare individuals for complexities of innovation and creative approaches to problem solving. The skilling ecosystem needs to look at ability-based industry certification, logical aptitude test as entry test and eligibility for courses. Employers need to conduct a competency assessment in their organisations and look at re-skilling. In the creative economy people need to be creators or users of technology. There is no middle path. Digital skills and Information Technology in the new world have been recast. Information Technology is no longer only coding, but Al powered tools, Web 3.0 and blockchain and most companies are trying to progress to Al, big data, cloud computing. To be able to use emergent technologies - logic, process thinking, problem solving, creativity are pre-requisites. Given the consequences of mass participation in the creative economy or lack of it, Primus Partners conducted a student situational self-assessment survey that became the basis and background for this Report. The Survey revolved 21st century skills which form the core of creative economy, as we understand it today - Problem-solving, Critical thinking & creative solution, Brainstorming, Teamwork, Real-Life application of learnings, Design Thinking, Observation and Research.







Contents

1.	Unlocking the Future: Empowering the Next Generation for a Dynamic Creative Economy		
	1.1	Defining the Creative Economy	05
	1.2	Potential of the Creative Economy	05
	1.3	Where We Are Right Now	05
	1.4 The Questions Ahead		06
2.	Stude Imper	ent Readiness for the Creative Economy: Insights and ratives from a Nationwide Survey	7
	2.1	Manning student readiness levels across key 21st century skills	00
	2.2	Regional Comparison of Student Skills Readiness Indices Across Key Competencies	10
	2.4	Student Readiness Indices across key competencies as per regional distribution	11
	2.5	Assessing student readiness across school types Public vs. Private schools	12

3.	Buildi	ng Core Competencies for the Future	15
	3.1	Problem-Solving	15
	3.2	Critical Thinking & Creative Solution	16
	3.3	Brainstorming	16
	3.4	Teamwork	17
	3.5	Real-Life Application of Learnings	17
	3.6	Design Thinking	18
	3.7	Observation	18
	3.8	Research	19

4.	Transforming Education: Navigating Pedagogical Shifts and Real-World Challenges to Prepare Students for the Creative Economy		
	4.1	The Need for Pedagogical Evolution	20
	4.2	The Indian Context: Opportunities and Challenges	20

4.2	The Indian Context: Opportunities and Challenges	20
4.3	Strategies for Overcoming Challenges	21





5. Catalysing India's Future: Nurturing Student Start-Up Culture **22** to Dominate the Global Creative Economy

5.1	India's Growing Creative Economy	22
5.2	Youth as Drivers of Innovation	22
5.3	India's Digital Transformation and increased Global investment	23
5.4	Global Case Studies Highlighting Impact	23
5.5	India's start-ups can potentially be the gateway to lead the Creative Economy	23

6. Reimagining Indian Education – Actionable Strategies for Teachers and Students to lead in the Creative Economy

6.1	Strengthening Foundational and Creative Learning	24
6.2	Aligning Curriculum and Assessments with Creative Economy Needs	24
6.3	Fostering Interdisciplinary Learning and Technological Integration	25
6.4	Enhancing Teacher and Industry Collaboration	25





Unlocking the Future: Empowering the Next Generation for a Dynamic Creative Economy

1.1 Defining the Creative Economy

The creative economy represents the intersection of culture, technology, and innovation. It encompasses industries such as:







Film, television, music, and digital content creation.



Design and Visual Arts:

Architecture, fashion, graphic design, and product development.



Animation: Video games, augmented reality

(AR), and virtual reality (VR) experiences.



Cultural Heritage:

Museums, cultural tourism, and traditional crafts.



Performing Arts:

Theatre, live performances, and streaming platforms.

Over the years, the sector has evolved from being a niche, culturally driven industry to a global powerhouse, contributing significantly to national economies.

1.2 Potential of the Creative Economy

Globally, the creative economy is a fast-growing sector, contributing significantly to GDP and employment. According to the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD), it generated \$2.25 trillion in revenue in 2019, employing over 30 million people worldwide.



Economic Contribution

In 2021, the creative economy contributed \$43 billion to the national GDP, representing 4.3% of economic output. This sector is projected to grow at a CAGR of 13% between 2021 and 2026 making it \$80 billion USD economy.



Digital Transformation

Platforms like Craftsvilla and AgriBazaar are revolutionizing traditional crafts and agriculture, while e-commerce reshapes fashion and textiles. The gaming industry alone is projected to reach \$5 billion by 2025.



Global Reach

Bollywood and regional cinema's adoption of OTT platforms is amplifying India's cultural influence on a global scale, creating new opportunities for content creators.

1.3 Where We Are Right Now

For India, a country steeped in tradition and brimming with youthful energy, the creative economy represents both an opportunity and a challenge. With its diverse cultural heritage and developing digital landscape, India has the potential to emerge as a global hub for creativity and innovation. Yet, the question remains: Are India's students-its future workforce equipped to meet the demands of this evolving landscape ?





The Demand for New Skills: Education plays a pivotal role in shaping the workforce of the creative economy, which is becoming a key driver for economic growth in India. Innovation is the life force of the creative economy, but it demands more than technical expertise. To thrive, individuals must possess critical 21st-century skills such as:



Critical thinking and problem-solving:

Addressing complex, real-world challenges with innovative solutions.

Creative collaboration:

Harnessing the collective power of diverse teams to generate breakthrough ideas.



Design thinking:

Applying user-centric approaches to create impactful products and services.



Digital literacy:

Navigating the ever-expanding digital ecosystem with proficiency and adaptability.

However, India's workforce faces significant skill gaps. While traditional education systems focus on rote memorization and theoretical knowledge, the creative economy demands practical, hands-on learning that fosters adaptability and creative thinking.

1.4 The Questions Ahead

Qualification requirements have changed over time, but people's knowledge, skills, competencies and attitudes have not kept pace. To thrive in the creative economy, there is an increasing need for 21st Century skills like critical thinking, creative problem-solving, brainstorming, teamwork, design thinking, and practical application of knowledge to real-world challenges.

This shift calls for not just an education system that nurtures these abilities from early learning stages, fostering students' capacity to generate novel ideas and solutions, but a workspace that acquires new skills, capacities and tools. As India strives to become a leader in the global creative economy, critical questions must be addressed:

- a. Are Indian students adequately prepared to meet the demands of this dynamic landscape?
- b. What systemic changes are needed in education and skill-building frameworks?

These questions form the foundation for this Report which explores readiness of Indian students to participate constructively in the creative economy, identifies gaps in Indian education system and opportunities that lie in preparing the next generation for success in the creative economy.

The Report concludes with actionable recommendations for the Indian education system. Emphasizing the integration of critical skills into curricula, it calls for policy interventions and frameworks to prepare students for a world driven by innovation and creativity.



Manit Jain

Co-Founder, The Heritage group of schools

Beyond the Classroom: Holistic Learning for 21st Century Purpose and Innovation

"

Education isn't just about filling minds with knowledge but igniting hearts with purpose.

Up until the turn of the millennium for most educators, holistic learning meant a functional knowledge of all subjects and skills students learnt through co-curricular activities like sports, art and music. The idea of preparing students revolved around mostly cognitive and some elements of physical development. When we started work on shifting that paradigm way back in 2003, the first thing to understand was what preparedness means for the 21st century workplaces and relationships. What is it that we wanted to preserve from past beliefs and what is it that needed to change? We understood clearly that classrooms where children seldom understood why they were learning what they were learning ensured that students got trained for purposelessness. Lack of relevance and not getting an answer to that "why" meant that students started perceiving learning as a duty as opposed to looking at it as a gift. This robbed them of their sense of purpose.

On the other hand, competitive classrooms where educators were focused on students deficits as opposed to their capacities coupled with an obsession with ranking and comparisons ensured that most students lost the ability to be themselves. It was like the entire system believed that ridicule, humiliation, negative reinforcement would ensure that students will work hard and do well in life. They completely ignored that while their intent may have been good, they were destroying the child's self-esteem in the process.





Student Readiness for the Creative Economy :

Insights and Imperatives from a Nationwide Survey



Mahesh Balakrishnan

Senior Manager, South Asia, International Baccalaureate

"

The future of work is changing and skills needed for the future are changing, hence it becomes critical for us to foster Critical thinking, problem solving, collaborative work and sharpen cognitive skills.



1500 + students from 22 Indian States across different education curriculums self-assessed their readiness across 8 core skill sets through a situational analysis survey conducted by Primus Partners.

The structured survey used scenario-based questions to evaluate students' competency in eight core 21st-century skills essential for success in the Creative Economy: critical thinking and creative solutions, problem-solving, design thinking, real-world application of learning, brainstorming, observation, teamwork, and research. Each response was categorized as High, Medium, or Low readiness, indicating students' position on the learning continuum and their level of cognitive engagement—ranging from lower-order to middle order to higher-order thinking skills—reflecting their varying preparedness and ability to apply these skills in real-world scenarios:



Low Readiness

Indicates basic competency, often associated with lower order thinking skills, where students show rudimentary knowledge with limited ability to engage mental faculties to apply the skill in real-world challenges, suggesting the need for further skill development.



Medium Readiness

Reflects moderate competency and middle-order thinking, showing partial application of the skill in real-world scenarios, often by relying on familiar solutions or tried and tested models, indicating a fair grasp but with room for growth.



High Readiness

Demonstrates advanced competency and higher-order thinking, where students effectively apply the skill in realworld contexts, leading to innovation and original thinking.





Key Highlights

High Readiness in Key Skills: A Small Elite I Only 9% of students show high readiness in essential skills like design thinking, critical thinking, and research skills, which imply that they are most likely to demonstrate strong problem-solving abilities and an investigative, analytical mindset. High readiness would also imply students create real-world solutions, think critically, and verify information sources rigorously.

Real-Life Application & Learning Gaps: A Wake-Up Call | 30% of government school students and 13% of private school students show low readiness in applying learning to reallife contexts. These students struggle to bridge the gap between knowledge and practical use, while high readiness students actively pursue real-world applications.

....

Critical Skill Deficiencies: A Growing Concern | 1 in 5 students shows low readiness in critical areas such as problem-solving, critical thinking, and research. These students often ignore problems, fail to recognize solutions, and lack curiosity, requiring extra support to move beyond surface-level engagement.

Private vs. Public School Readiness: Disparate Strengths | Private schools show the highest readiness in applying knowledge to real-life contexts, highlighting more practical, applied learning approaches. On the other hand, public schools excel in observation skills, with students demonstrating keen awareness and responsiveness to environmental stimuli. However, student numbers in both categories remain relatively small.

Design Thinking and Real-World Learning:

Some students ahead of curve | While overall readiness levels need improvement, design thinking and real-life application are areas where high readiness students excel, and they belong to IB board. These students are limited and most likely demonstrate abilities to solve real-world problems creatively. Tweaking curriculum and pedagogy: Need for quick shifts I Across all educational curricula, there is a significant need for improvement in Critical Thinking, Creative Solutions, Problem-Solving, and Research Skills. Many students favour incremental thinking and avoid proactive engagement. Suggesting that micro strategies around these core skills may need to be approached differently from current teacher practice, as these are crucial for future development.

The student survey attempts an overview of how India's education system is preparing students for the demands of the creative economy. The findings signal areas of strength and opportunities for improvement to align contemporary classrooms with the demands of a creative economy.

The following sections break down key observations, with each graph highlighting a specific dimension of student readiness.

2.1 Readiness Level across Student Population

The graph points toward student readiness levels across the dataset, grouped into three categories: High, Medium, and Low. It provides a clear visualization of students' readiness in terms of skills and competency levels.

Students Readiness Levels for Creative Economy: Distribution Across High, Medium and Low Category



PRIMUS PARTNERS® Solutions for Tomorrow



75% of students have medium readiness, mostly from CBSE, followed by ICSE/ISC, State Board, and IB.

7% of students have high readiness, primarily from CBSE and IB.

18% have low readiness, mainly from State Board schools.

High readiness is rare and hard to reach. About **1 in 5 students** has low readiness and needs extra help to move out of the low readiness level.

The survey highlights gaps in the practical implementation of educational reforms, especially regarding creative solution, problem-solving, and innovation skills.

Key Insights

Require targeted interventions for enhancing Student Outcomes across all levels

The survey highlights gaps in the implementation of **NEP 2020**, showing that students lack essential skills like creativity, problem-solving, and innovation.

To address these gaps, it is crucial to focus on improving learning outcomes through targeted pedagogical interventions.

This includes adopting successful strategies from high-performing schools, providing extra support to students with low readiness, and fostering the skills necessary to succeed in a creative economy.

Schools need to integrate experiential learning and project-based assessments, by adopting more hands-on, real-world projects that allow students to explore creative solutions to realworld problems. This, then can be used as a means of assessments by educators to assess students on problem-solving, creativity and innovation.

Educational institutions and government bodies should collaborate with expert partners and local industries to provide mentorship and practical exposure to students and aid to implement strategies that elevate overall student readiness across all levels. This approach further aligns with NEP 2020s advocacy and emphasis on critical thinking and practical learning.



2.2 Mapping student readiness levels across key 21st century skills

This Graph highlights student readiness in terms of eight core skills, categorized into high, medium, and low readiness.

Students Readiness Levels across Eight Core Skill Sets







79% of students in the medium range, but high readiness is still limited.

Key Insights Embracing Inquiry-Based Learning to Enhance Students' Core Skills for Future Success

It is pertinent to integrate inquiry-based learning strategies to enhance students' problem-solving and critical thinking abilities.

There is a need for designing educational programs that emphasize deeper and creative thinking, addressing the current gaps in critical thinking and research skills.

To foster inquiry-based learning and research among students, some of the high performing schools tend to incorporate real-world case studies and social challenges into core subjects that allow students to explore, question and devise solutions to pressing societal issues. It enables students to engage in research, analysis and apply knowledge across subjects, enabling a deeper, problem-solving mindset while making learning more relevant and impactful.

Schools should design initiatives that bridge the gap between theoretical learning and practical implementation such as establishing Integrated Learning Modules that connect academic concepts with real-life application through regular workshops, simulations and field projects.



2.3 Regional Comparison of Student Skills Readiness Indices Across Key Competencies

Distribution of students as per Region across High, Medium and Low scale







The North region shows highest understanding across skills

It is closely followed by Central, West & East Regions respectively

South region scores lowest across skills

Differences between regions are small, usually around **1-1.5 points**.

Key Insights

..

Embracing Inquiry-Based Learning to Enhance Students' Core Skills for Future Success

Use the North region's high readiness as a benchmark for best practices to be shared with other regions.

Implement targeted interventions in Central, West and East regions, to move students from medium to high level and in South regions to improve low readiness and ensure equitable skill development.

To push students from low and medium readiness categories into High readiness, schools will have to focus on integrating collaborative projects, digital literacy, critical thinking exercises, adaptive teaching and learning mechanisms, community enhancement engagement, global awareness, entrepreneurship and creative expression platforms, in addition to experiential, investigative and project-based learning.





2.4 Student Readiness Indices across key competencies as per regional distribution

The following chart highlights student readiness in eight essential skills for academic and professional success, revealing that most scores fall between 12.0 and 13.5, indicating that students in all regions possess fairly strong skills.

Student Readiness Indices across Key competencies as per Regional distribution

	12.9 % 13.3 % 12.8 % 12.2 % 12.3 %	Problem Solving
11	12.0 % 12.3 % 12.0 % .0 % 12.1 %	Critical Thinking & Critical Solutions
	12.8 % 13.4 % 13.2 % 12.1 % 12.8 %	Brain Storming
	12.1 % 13.4 % 13.4 % 12.1 % 13.1 %	Team Work
	13.5 % 13.4 % 13.3% 12.6 % 13.3 %	Real Life application of Learnings
	13.2 % 13.7 % 13.3 % 12.3 % 13.2 %	Design Thinking
	13.3 % 13.0 % 13.2 % 12.0 % 13.1 %	Observation Skills
1	12.1 % 12.6 % 13.0 % 1.6 % 12.5 %	Research Skills
Central East	North 🔵 S	South 🛑 West



Real life application of learning application scores the highest in all regions.

Kev Insights

Shifting Regional Focus on Elevating Student Readiness for the Creative Economy

Targeted programs are needed, particularly in the South, to strengthen critical thinking and problem-solving skills essential for innovation.

High scores in teamwork and real-life application can be leveraged as models to enhance other areas through collaborative, hands-on learning.

Regions like the West need greater emphasis on research capabilities, focusing on analytical thinking and investigative methods.

The South's low critical thinking score requires curriculum changes to foster deeper analysis and creative solutions.

Schools may need to integrate areas and resources dedicated to innovation labs where students can engage in prototyping and simulation activities enabling design thinking, critical thinking, problem solving, brainstorming, research and teamwork skills.

2.5 Assessing student readiness across school types | Public vs. Private schools

Critical thinking and creative solution are capabilities that are crucial for navigating and thriving in dynamic environments. According to a study by the National Endowment for the Arts, critical thinking, and creative problem-solving are linked to higher levels of innovation and adaptability, key traits for success in creative fields (National Endowment for the Arts, 2019). Educational approaches that incorporate critical analysis and encourage creative exploration help students develop these skills effectively.

Key Observations



38% of students in government schools show

78% of private school students exhibit medium readiness, much higher than the 58% in

Private schools slightly outperform



government schools in high readiness, with 8% versus 5%.

across both public and private schools.

schools showcase highest readiness for





PRIMUS RESEARCH

Student Readiness Levels across skills for different types of schools in India (Government Vs Private)



Key Insights

An opportunity to bridge the skill and student readiness gap in Indian schools

Government schools need targeted interventions to address the low readiness of over a third of students. Projects focusing on capacity-building, educator training, and curriculum modernization could improve outcomes. Schools need to focus on integrating experiential learning through community projects, digital literacy programs and hands-on activities promoting 21st century skills.

The success of private schools in fostering 21st-century skills offers models that can be scaled to government schools through publicprivate partnerships (PPPs).

Teacher training is essential, especially in government schools, to improve delivery of 21st-century skills. Large-scale training initiatives offer a key opportunity



Sunil Razdan

Chief Coordinator – Gyan Shakti Vidyalaya (GSV)

A Case Study of Students Studying in Gyan Shakti Vidyalaya – GSV

Gyan Shakti Vidyalaya is a school after school - it supports students studying in government schools in after school hours with their academics, and 21st century skills and prepares them to be functional in the real world of work and civil society.

"

At Gyan Shakti Vidyalaya, we go beyond education, empowering young people to contribute meaningfully to the creative economy. Despite facing significant social and economic challenges, our students turn obstacles into strengths, preparing for a future driven by innovation.

Early career counselling from Class X, paired with 3–6month vocational training, helps students identify passions and gain practical skills. These programs develop creative problem-solving abilities vital for today's world. Students pursue careers in fields like electrical work, photography, and hotel management, equipping themselves with skills essential for an economy centered on creativity.

"The future belongs to those who apply creative solutions to real-world problems, and we're helping students unlock that potential."

Beyond vocational training, we foster adaptability, lateral thinking, and teamwork. Students are encouraged to pursue further education in fields like law and teaching, supported by sponsorships and allowances. Digital literacy and English proficiency, taught from Class IX, prepare students to thrive in a technology-driven world.

Mentorship programs, industry guest lectures, and theatre productions have been transformative. Over 15 years, NSD-guided performances have honed teamwork, critical thinking, and creativity. Students like Gautam, now a successful producer, return to mentor others, creating a cycle of innovation and leadership. "Students leave us not just with skills, but with the confidence to create, innovate, and lead in industries that value imagination and critical thinking." By nurturing creativity, problem-solving, and adaptability, we prepare students not just for jobs but for shaping a thriving creative economy. Problemsolving empowers them to transform challenges into opportunities, ensuring they are equipped to lead and innovate in the industries of tomorrow. 77









Building Core Competencies for the Future

With the readiness gaps identified, this chapter presents a detailed blueprint for fostering core competencies essential for success. The focus shifts to actionable strategies, best practices, and global case studies that demonstrate how these skills can drive innovation.



Shweta Khurana

Senior Director Asia Pacific and Japan, Government Partnership and Initiatives, Global Government Affairs, Intel.

"

We are facing a generational shift because of AI. This moment can redefine educational quality, potentially nurturing a generation ready for the future of work- jobs in digital, creative and AI driven economies. Research shows that for students to thrive in the dynamic creative economy, they need to be equipped with the 8 core skills sets that cultivate innovation, adaptability, and critical thinking – qualities essential for solving complex real-world challenges. Best practices to integrate these into the education curriculum are vital for empowering and creating future leaders to [not only succeed but also drive transformative change in creative industries globally.

3.1 Problem-Solving

Problem-Solving is fundamental in the creative economy, where complex challenges require innovative solutions. Research by the World Economic Forum highlights that problem-solving is among the top skills needed for future jobs, as it enables individuals to address and resolve novel and unforeseen issues (World Economic Forum, 2020). Educators can enhance problem-solving skills through project-based learning and simulations, allowing students to tackle real-world problems and develop practical solutions.

Best Practices : Root Cause Analysis (RCA)



Asking **"why"** multiple times to drill down to the underlying problem



Outcome

Identifies and addresses root causes, preventing recurring issues and fostering better long-term solutions.

Use Cases in the Real World



TOYOTA

Toyota applied RCA through the **"Five Whys"** technique to enhance manufacturing efficiency, which resulted in reduced production defects and improved overall quality control, setting a standard in the auto industry. The boxed best practices under each skill can be showcased as an infographic





3.2 Critical Thinking & Creative Solution

Critical thinking and creative solution are capabilities that are crucial for navigating and thriving in dynamic environments. According to a study by the National Endowment for the Arts, critical thinking, and creative problem-solving are linked to higher levels of innovation and adaptability, key traits for success in creative fields (National Endowment for the Arts, 2019). Educational approaches that incorporate critical analysis and encourage creative exploration help students develop these skills effectively.

Best Practices : Ladder of Inference



Method

Developed by Chris Argyris, this framework guides students to avoid jumping to conclusions by analysing data step by step.



Ensures more informed decisions and better business results

through careful analysis of facts.

Use Cases in the Real World



IBM

IBM applied the Ladder of Inference framework to improve project outcomes by focusing on thorough data analysis and avoiding assumptions.

3.3 Brainstorming

Brainstorming is a technique that supports the generation of diverse ideas and solutions. The American Psychological Association notes that brainstorming helps in fostering creativity and group dynamics, essential for collaborative environments in the creative economy (American Psychological Association, 2021). Educators can implement brainstorming sessions and encourage open-ended discussions to cultivate this skill.

Best Practices : Osborn's Brainstorming Method



Method

Developed by Alex Osborn, this technique encourages generating many ideas without criticism.



Outcome

Fosters creativity by allowing free thinking and avoiding judgment during the ideation process.

Use Cases in the Real World



GOOGLE

Google uses Osborn's Brainstorming Method in its "20% Time" initiative, where employees spend time on creative side projects, leading to the creation of groundbreaking products like Gmail and enhancing innovation.





3.4 Teamwork

Teamwork is an essential competency and work skill enabling cross pollination of ideas, clarification of conceptual cobwebs, and learning from peers in a collaborative mode. Research by the Journal of Business and Psychology emphasizes that teamwork enhances problem-solving abilities and creative outcomes through diverse perspectives and shared knowledge (Journal of Business and Psychology, 2022). Group projects and collaborative assignments in education can build these skills.

Best Practices : Tuckman's Stages of Group Development



Method

Developed by Bruce Tuckman, the model outlines four stages of team development: Forming, Storming, Norming, and Performing.



Outcome

Helps students understand the dynamics of teamwork and how to navigate challenges as they arise.

Use Cases in the Real World



NASA

NASA used Tuckman's model to strengthen collaboration within project teams, such as those working on the Mars Rover missions. The outcome was improved team dynamics and problem-solving, enabling teams to navigate conflict and achieve ambitious goals.

3.5 Real-Life Application of Learnings

The Real-Life Application of Learnings bridges theoretical knowledge with practical experience. The Carnegie Foundation for the Advancement of Teaching advocates for experiential learning, which helps students apply classroom concepts to real-world scenarios, thereby reinforcing their understanding and relevance (Carnegie Foundation, 2020).

Best Practices : Kolb's Experiential Learning Theory



Method

Focuses on learning through realworld experiences, involving concrete experience, reflection, conceptualization, and experimentation.



Outcome

Helps students apply theoretical knowledge to practical situations, deepening their understanding through direct involvement

Use Cases in the Real World



STARBUCKS

Starbucks immerses employees in real-world customer service scenarios during training, leading to improved customer service skills and employee engagement through practical experience.





3.6 Design Thinking

Design Thinking involves a user-centred approach to innovation, focusing on empathy, problem definition, ideation, prototyping, and testing. The Harvard Business Review notes that design thinking drives creative solutions by aligning products and services with user needs (Harvard Business Review, 2021). Integrating design thinking into educational curricula can help students develop a structured approach to innovation.

Best Practices : Stanford Design Thinking



A five-stage process encompassing empathy, define, ideate, prototype, and test, aimed at fostering innovation and user-centred solutions.



Empowers students to create practical, user-friendly projects

needs of others

by deeply understanding the

Use Cases in the Real World



PROCTER & GAMBLE

Used Design Thinking to redesign its Swiffer product line by empathizing with consumers and identifying their pain points. The outcome was the introduction of new features that led to significant increases in sales and customer satisfaction, demonstrating the effectiveness of a user-centred approach.

3.7 Observation

Observation Skills are vital for gathering insights and understanding context, which informs creative processes. The National Research Council emphasizes the importance of observational skills in developing critical insights and understanding complex systems (National Research Council, 2018). Teaching strategies that enhance observational techniques can improve students' ability to analyse and interpret data effectively

Best Practices : Gemba Walk



Method

A principle from Lean management that emphasizes direct observation of processes and environments to understand situations better.



Outcome

Encourages students to gather firsthand insights instead of relying on assumptions or secondhand information.

Use Cases in the Real World



Toyota & GE

Companies like Toyota and General Electric employ Gemba Walks to enhance operational efficiency. GE utilized Gemba Walks to identify inefficiencies in manufacturing, leading to significant productivity improvements through direct insights





3.8 Research

Research Skills are necessary for informed decision-making and innovation. A report by the Research and Innovation Group highlights that strong research skills underpin successful creative projects by providing the necessary background knowledge and data (Research and Innovation Group, 2022). Incorporating research projects and inquirybased learning into education helps students develop these competencies.

Best Practices : First Principles Thinking



A problem-solving approach that involves breaking down complex ideas into their fundamental components to challenge existing assumptions.



Outcome

Empowers students to understand and innovate by analysing the core principles of a topic or problem.

Use Cases in the Real World



SpaceX

SpaceX employs First Principles Thinking to innovate in rocket design, allowing them to challenge conventional approaches and assumptions. This led to the development of reusable rockets that significantly reduce costs, showcasing the effectiveness of this analytical framework in achieving groundbreaking advancements.



Sunanda Sandhir

Principal Middle School - Pathways School Noida

"

In today's rapidly evolving world, integrating 21st-century skills like creativity, critical thinking, collaboration, and communication into education is vital. At Pathways School Noida, we embed these skills throughout our curriculum, encouraging students to think beyond conventional boundaries and develop a creative mindset.

One key initiative is Genius Hour, where students use design thinking to identify problems and devise innovative solutions. Projects have ranged from creating water filters for underprivileged communities to designing sustainable jewellery and developing herbal mosquito repellents. These initiatives combine creativity with practical application, fostering empathy and problem-solving skills.

We also prioritize community service as part of the creative process. Students conduct needs analyses, empathybuilding exercises, and action-oriented projects, such as teaching underprivileged children or tailoring learning solutions for diverse needs. These activities not only nurture critical thinking but also empower students to contribute positively to society.

Additionally, student-led clubs and leadership roles promote agency. Senior students propose and lead their own clubs, organizing lessons for younger peers. This approach cultivates leadership, collaboration, and mentorship while building a vibrant, inclusive learning environment.





Transforming Education Navigating Pedagogical Shifts & Real-World Challenges to Prepare Students for the Creative Economy

This chapter discusses how educational practices must evolve to address the gaps and competencies highlighted earlier. By showcasing successful global models and identifying challenges unique to India, it emphasizes the importance of experiential learning and technology integration.



Manit Jain

Co-Founder, The Heritage group of schools

"

Education must evolve to cultivate purposeful learners who embody empathy, self-awareness, and critical thinking. By integrating technology and project-based learning, we empower students to tackle real-world challenges while nurturing their capacity for social impact and meaningful work



Sudipta Mukherji

Educator, Curriculum Developer, Teacher Trainer and Dyslexia Language Therapist

"

The world of education is constantly changing. Today's learners cannot be taught using traditional methods, and the topics covered in the curriculum cannot be seen in isolation. Instead, learners need to connect them to their daily lives. The integration of 21stcentury skills with education is a recent development, but the groundwork for this was laid long ago. A strong learning environment plays a crucial role in a learner's development; in my opinion, it functions as a third teacher. To balance the development of foundational knowledge while fostering skills like creativity, teamwork, and critical thinking, educators must focus on children's self-efficacy. This helps them see themselves as confident and capable learners. Developing a sense of self and belief in their abilities is key to well-being and experiencing success

4.1 The Need for Pedagogical Evolution

The rapid growth of the creative economy demands a pedagogical shift that prioritizes creativity, problem-solving, and digital literacy. Globally, education systems in countries like Finland and Singapore have embraced these skills, moving away from rote learning to foster critical thinking and interdisciplinary approaches. Finland's curriculum, for example, emphasizes project-based learning, where students work on real-world challenges across subjects, promoting creativity and collaboration. Similarly, the U.S. STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts, and Mathematics) education model integrates arts with traditional subjects to nurture holistic, innovative thinking.

4.2 The Indian Context: Opportunities & Challenges

In the Indian context, the National Education Policy (NEP) 2020 highlights the need for this transformation. The NEP advocates for a multidisciplinary approach, encouraging students to blend subjects and focus on experiential learning, thereby preparing them for the demands of the creative economy. Research indicates that hands-on learning, critical thinking, and digital fluency are critical to thriving in industries like media, design, and digital entrepreneurship fields that are becoming dominant in India's growing creative sector.





However, the implementation of this pedagogical transformation presents challenges. Government schools often face resource constraints, including insufficient teacher training and access to digital infrastructure. Private schools, though better equipped, may struggle to balance academic rigor with creative exploration, as many parents and institutions still prioritize conventional academic success over innovation. Furthermore, the examination-oriented culture prevalent in Indian education discourages risk-taking and creativity.

4.3 Strategies for Overcoming Challenges

Mitigating these challenges requires a multipronged approach. Investment in teacher training, both in government and private schools, is crucial to ensure educators can adapt to new pedagogical methods. Strengthening digital infrastructure, particularly in rural areas, is also essential. Collaborations with ed-tech companies and non-profits can help bridge gaps in resources. Additionally, fostering a cultural shift in parental and societal attitudes toward education—valuing creative skills alongside academic excellence—will accelerate the pace of pedagogical transformation, allowing students to thrive in the creative economy.

Overall, aligning educational practices with the demands of the creative economy ensures that students are equipped with the necessary skills to thrive in an ever-evolving global landscape. By focusing on these essential competencies, educational institutions can better prepare students for the challenges and opportunities of the creative sector.





Pooja Kwatra

Pedagogue, Curriculum Developer, Teacher Trainer and Education Advisor, Primus Partners Private Limited

Bringing students' inquiry at the front and centre in classrooms

"

We are in the midst of an educational renaissance, driven by the emergence of the creative economy, shifts in future job landscapes, and advancements in technologies like AI, robotics, and future tech. Arnidst this transformation, classrooms are becoming hubs of engagement, where students dive into deep thinking and learning, and teachers foster a culture of exploration.

Generative AI, social media, and digital interfaces subtly shape preferences and behaviors, while technologies like AI, AR, VR, 3D, and blockchain empower creative freedom, transforming industries. Preparing students for the creative economy requires not only new skills but also an education approach that encourages research, synthesis, and unique insights. To leverage this effectively, students need 21st-century skills, defined by UNESCO as communication, collaboration, problemsolving, digital literacy, and a culture of lifelong learning. As an educator with global experience (Geneva, Beijing, Paris, Washington DC, and New Delhi), I advocate for pedagogical techniques that foster inquiry, deep thinking, and understanding. Methods like "learning to learn" focus on the process rather than just outcomes, nurturing creativity, critical thinking, and problem-solving by engaging students in exploration and reflection. Harvard Project Zero is one such educational research group that aims to enhance deep thinking and understanding by developing innovative methods to maximize human potential for learning thus honing students' critical thinking, creativity, and problem-solving skills

For instance, in teaching mathematics through problem-solving, traditional methods focus on steps to get the right answer, bypassing critical and creative thinking. A "learning to learn" approach encourages exploration, brainstorming, and reflection, fostering creativity, deep understanding, resilience, and a mindset of lifelong learning.

PRIMUS PARTNERS® Solutions for Tomorrow



Catalysing India's Future Nurturing Student Start-Up Culture to Dominate the Global Creative Economy

The creative economy, valued at over \$2.25 trillion globally and employing 30 million people, thrives on innovation, entrepreneurship, and collaboration. Student start-ups are increasingly becoming the backbone of this economy, with young innovators driving solutions in industries like digital media, technology, design, and cultural enterprises. According to the NASSCOM Start-up Report 2023, India is home to over 90,000 start-ups, with nearly 45% founded by individuals under the age of 30. This burgeoning trend highlights the untapped potential of fostering entrepreneurial mindsets among students. By integrating start-up culture into schools and colleges, India can prepare its youth to become leaders in the creative economy, transforming local innovation into global impact.



Sabeer Bhatia

Co-Founder Showreel & Hotmail

"

Education must evolve, fostering lateral thinkers who can lead us into the future. The greatest successes of the 21st century will come from those who dare to question, take risks, and think differently. In this new creative economy, driven by human imagination, the possibilities are limitless. The strength of the creative economy lies in its entrepreneurs — those who have the freedom to innovate and solve problems

India's student start-ups exemplify the creative economy in action. This chapter celebrates the rise of young innovators while identifying systemic improvements needed to sustain this growth. **5.1** India's Growing Creative Economy

\$200 B GDP **10 M** Employment

The Indian creative economy contributes nearly **\$200 billion** to the GDP, with sectors like film, design, gaming, and digital content seeing exponential growth.

A World Economic Forum (WEF) report projects that creative industries in India will employ over **10 million people by 2030**, underscoring the need for a skilled and entrepreneurial workforce. A school-level start-up culture will not only equip students with the skills needed to succeed in these sectors but will also accelerate job creation and economic growth.

5.2 Youth as Drivers of Innovation

With over **65% of its population under 35**, India boasts the largest youth demographic in the world, positioning the country as a hub for fresh ideas and innovation

eas and innovation.

According to a Startup Genome report, young founders in creative industries show **30% higher success rates** when supported with mentorship and institutional backing.

India has seen a surge in the number of student entrepreneurs. According to the National Institution for Transforming India (NITI Aayog), student-led start-ups have grown by over **100% in the last 5 years**. This rise is attributed to the increasing emphasis on a holistic learning environment, particularly in higher education institutions.





5.3 India's Digital Transformation and increased Global investment



With India's digital economy expected to reach **\$ 1 trillion by 2025**, start-up culture rooted in schools will empower students to lead digital transformations across creative sectors such as entertainment, e-commerce and design. This transformation will solidify India's position as a digital and creative powerhouse.

In 2023, India attracted **\$ 11.3 billion USD** with a significant proportion directed towards creative industries like digital media and entertainment. Cultivating a start-up culture from an education level will continue to attract both national and international investors, driving further growth in the creative sector.

5.4 Global Case Studies Highlighting Impact

In the U.S., **60%** of unicorn start-ups were initiated by student entrepreneurs, demonstrating the transformative potential of start-up ecosystems in educational institutions.

Finland's "Startup High School" model has shown a 50% increase in studentled ventures within 5 years, contributing significantly to its creative economy.

5.5 India's start-ups can potentially be the gateway to lead the Creative Economy

Integrating entrepreneurship labs in schools and colleges can equip students with skills like problem-solving, team building, and pitching ideas. Expanding government initiatives like the Atal Innovation Mission (AIM) and Startup India to target school-level entrepreneurs can enhance accessibility and engagement. Encouraging industry-academia partnerships can provide students with real-world exposure, internships, and funding opportunities to develop their ideas.

Building a robust student start-up culture will position India as a global leader in innovation, contributing to exports, intellectual property development, and cultural diplomacy. Student entrepreneurs who succeed in the creative economy often inspire a ripple effect, creating ecosystems of innovation and employment opportunities.

Investing in student start-ups is not just an educational reform but a national strategy to harness the potential of India's youth. By embedding entrepreneurship in the curriculum and providing resources to support young innovators, India can empower its students to drive the creative economy and become global trailblazers of innovation and cultural progress.





Reimagining Indian Education Actionable Strategies for Teachers and Students to lead in the Creative Economy

In an era where creativity and innovation drive economic growth, education must become the cornerstone of a thriving creative economy. India, with its rich cultural heritage and dynamic youth population, has immense potential to lead this global shift. However, unlocking this potential requires a transformative approach to teaching and learning—one that empowers students with critical skills, nurtures their ability to think innovatively, and equips educators to guide them in meaningful ways. By integrating creative thinking into the curriculum, fostering multidisciplinary learning approaches, and building robust teacher capacity, the Indian education system can prepare students to excel in industries shaped by design, technology, and collaboration.

The following recommendations outline actionable steps to reimagine education and enable India's youth to become architects of a flourishing creative economy.

6.1 Strengthening Foundational and Creative Learning

Build a strong base in literacy, numeracy, and digital literacy to enable students to engage with creative tools and technologies effectively.

Introduce early-stage activities in art, design, and storytelling to develop imagination and divergent thinking.

Embed 21st-century skills across curricula, teaching structured processes like design thinking, critical analysis, problem-solving, and real-world application of learning.

Offer personalised learning pathways for creative growth by allowing subject choices aligned with creative aspirations, flexible course structures, and mentorship programs.

Leverage technology tools such as Aldriven platforms to customise learning paths based on students' interests, strengths, and career aspirations.



6.2 Aligning Curriculum and Assessments with Creative Economy Needs

Define clear learning outcomes

focusing on skills like design thinking, critical analysis, and an entrepreneurial mindset.

Update learning goals regularly to reflect the needs of industries like digital media, content creation, design, and technology.

Adopt competency-based

assessments, replacing traditional testing with project-based assessments that evaluate collaboration and practical application.

Use digital portfolios and peerreviewed projects as tools to measure competencies.

Introduce entrepreneurial and start-up labs where students can prototype ideas, develop business models, and pitch to mentors.

Include entrepreneurship as part of the curriculum to instil initiative and self-reliance.





6.3 Fostering Interdisciplinary Learning and Technological Integration

Integrate interdisciplinary approaches by offering blended courses combining STEM with arts, humanities, and social sciences.

Introduce cross-disciplinary projects requiring collaboration to develop wellrounded problem-solving abilities.

..

Mandate emergent technologies, including AI, coding, 3D printing, AR/VR,

and multimedia tools, in school curricula. Build core digital literacy programs to

enable students to innovate using these technologies.

6.4 Enhancing Teacher and Industry Collaboration

Develop specialised training programs to equip educators to adopt creative pedagogies and technologies, integrating 21st-century skills into daily teaching.

Create mentorship networks and collaborative platforms for teachers to share best practices, leveraging AR/VR and gamified content.

Develop teaching strategies catering to varying abilities and learning styles to maximise student potential.

Co-create curriculum content with leaders from media, design, and technology sectors to ensure relevance.

Facilitate partnerships with industry leaders for mentorship programs, workshops, internships, and site visits.

Incorporate local arts, crafts, and cultural heritage into the curriculum, encouraging students to innovate by blending traditional knowledge with global trends.









Charu Malhotra Co-Founder & Managing Director

Authors



Namita Repe Assistant Vice President



Chahat Ahluwalia Manager



Farhan Ahmad Assistant Vice President



Vartika Soni Manager

Aman Sartaj Sr. Consultant

Contributors



Ankush Sharma Sr. Consultant



Jagadeep Sethi Consultant



for providing solutions

to help clients achieve

their goals



RESPECT for all and alternate viewpoints of thoughts and actions



MASTERY

of our chosen subject

to drive innovative and

insightful solutions



US

representing the Primus

collective, where each

individual matters

STEWARDSHIP for building a better tomorrow

Primus Partners has been set up to partner with clients in 'navigating' India, by experts with decades of experience in doing so for large global firms. Set up on the principle of 'Idea Realization', it brings to bear 'experience in action'. 'Idea Realization' – a unique approach to examine futuristic ideas required for the growth of an organization or a sector or geography, from the perspective of assured on ground implementability.

Our core strength comes from our founding partners, who are goal-oriented, with extensive hands-on experience and subject-matter expertise, which is well recognized in the industry. Established by seasoned industry leaders with extensive experience in global organizations, Primus Partners boasts a team of over 250 consultants and additional advisors, showcasing some of the finest talent in the nation.

The firm has a presence across multiple cities in India, as well as Dubai, UAE. In addition, the firm has successfully executed projects across Africa, Asia Pacific and the Americas.

India Offices

PRIMUS

PARTNERS®

Solutions for

Tomorrow

Bengaluru

91 Springboard Business Hub 175, 176 Bannerghatta Rd, Dollars Colony, Bengaluru – 560076

Chandigarh

2nd Floor, Netsmartz, Plot No. 10, Rajiv Gandhi Chandigarh Technology Park, Chandigarh – 160019

Chennai

147, Pathari Rd, Door #3, WorkEz Hansa Building, RK Swamy Centre, Thousand Lights, Chennai, TN - 600006 Delhi 1 to 7, UG Floor, Tolstoy House, Tolstoy Road, Connaught Place

New Delhi - 110001

Kolkata

Siddhartha Apartments 4th Floor, 188/2, Block J, New Alipore, Kolkata - 700053 601, 6th floor, Raheja Centre, Nariman Point, Mumbai, MH - 400021

